
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
APRIL 18, 2013 

 
 
 
 
Attendees 
Gary Gunderman, Planning Manager; Steve Langworthy, Director of Land Use and Long Range 
Planning; Rachel Ray, Planner II; Jennifer Rauch, Planner II; Alan Perkins, Fire Marshal; Jeff 
Tyler, Director of Building Standards; Barb Cox, Engineering Manager; Colleen Gilger, Economic 
Development Manager; John DeJarnette, Police Lieutenant; Stephen Caplinger, Creative Design 
+ Planning, representing Edwards Communities; Anthony Zinder, representing Winan’s of 
Dublin; and Flora Rogers, Administrative Assistant. 
 
Gary Gunderman called the meeting to order. 
 
Case Introduction 
 

1. 13-032MPR – BSC Commercial District – Shoppes at River Ridge – White 
Dress Co. – Signs – 4455 West Dublin-Granville Road 

Rachel Ray introduced this request to install an 18-square-foot wall sign and a 4-square-foot 
projecting sign for an existing retail facility located in the Shoppes at River Ridge shopping 
center located at the southeast corner of the intersection of West Dublin-Granville Road and 
Dale Drive.  She said this Minor Project Review application is proposed in accordance with 
Zoning Code Section 153.066(G). 
 
Barb Cox had noted errors with the tenant addresses at this center since there had been a 
revision in October of 2012. 
 
Colleen Gilger said the owners of the center may not be aware that the addresses were 
changed. 
 
Ms. Ray said she will notify the applicant and property owners of the address changes. 
 
Ms. Ray said the bridal dress shop will have two store front signs, one facing Dale Drive to the 
west and one facing the parking lot to the east.  She said they worked with the applicant to 
make the signs three dimensional. She explained that the projecting sign facing Dale Drive will 
have a white cabinet with internal LED lighting and will be black and white. She said the wall 
sign facing the parking lot is proposed with a black panel attached to the building with a white 
cabinet and push-through lettering that will give the sign a dimensional appearance.  She said 
the applicant would like to relocate the emergency exit light on the front façade to be able to 
center the sign cabinet over the tenant space.   
 
Jeff Tyler said there may be a conflict with the Building Code if the applicant moves the 
emergency exit sign because it is necessary to provide egress lighting. He suggested the 
applicant explore using the carriage lights on an emergency lighting circuit as an alternative. 

 

 
Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 
phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
____________________ 

 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 18, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 

 
 
Mr. Tyler wanted to clarify that the white portion of the wall sign is not lit but the lettering is. 
Ms. Ray said the white cabinet is opaque but the letters will be halo-lit with a white light. 
 
Mr. Gunderman asked if there were any other questions. [There were none.] He stated that this 
application would be back before the ART for a determination at the next meeting on April 25, 
2013. 
 
 
Case Determinations 
 

2. 13-029ARB-MPR – BSC Historic Core District – Jeni’s Ice Cream – Signs – 1 
West Bridge Street 

Jennifer Rauch said this application was introduced last week and the request was to install an 
8-square-foot wall sign and a 6-square-foot projecting sign for an existing business located at 
the southwest corner of the intersection of Bridge Street and High Street. She said this Minor 
Project Review application is proposed in accordance with Zoning Code Section 153.066(G).  
 
Ms. Rauch said the High Street sign will be individual letters and the Bridge Street sign will be a 
projecting sign with lighting on the bracket. She said the two signs meet height and size 
requirements, the only condition proposed is to re-paint the areas of the building façade that 
are currently under the existing sign that will be exposed with the new sign letters. She 
requested the Administrative Review Team make a recommendation to the Architectural Review 
Board for approval with one condition: 
 

1. The applicant refinish the fascia board that contains the existing wall signs prior to the 
installation of the proposed signs. 

 
Gary Gunderman confirmed that there were no further comments on this application.  He said 
the Administrative Review Team recommends that the Architectural Review Board consider 
approval with one condition: 
 

1. The applicant refinish the fascia board that contains the existing wall signs prior to the 
installation of the proposed signs. 

 
Mr. Gunderman stated that this application would be reviewed by the Architectural Review 
Board at their next scheduled meeting on Wednesday, April 24, 2013.  
 

3. 13-030ARB-MPR – BSC Historic Core District – Winan’s of Dublin – Patio – 52 
South High Street 

Jennifer Rauch said this application was introduced last week for a request to remove an 
existing landscape bed and replace with a 50-square-foot outdoor seating area for a restaurant 
located at the southeast corner of the intersection of South High Street and Spring Hill. She 
requested the Administrative Review Team make a recommendation to the Architectural Review 
Board and said Planning is recommending approval with two conditions: 
 

1. The applicant work with Planning to provide and appropriately locate a trash receptacle. 
2. The applicant use the matching brick detail for the proposed area to coordinate with the 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 18, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 

 
existing brick sidewalk, subject to approval by Engineering. 

 
Ms. Rauch said there will be two tables with chairs within the right-of-way.  She said that she 
checked with Aaron Stanford, Civil Engineer, who confirmed that because these tables and 
chairs are temporary in nature that there will not be a need for City Council review of a Request 
for Right-of-Way Encroachment. 
 
Steve Langworthy said there is a potential issue over time to keep the tables and chairs pulled 
off the sidewalk.  Anthony Zinder, representing the applicant, said they will keep them within 
the designated area. 
 
Gary Gunderman confirmed that there were no further comments.  
 
The Administrative Review Team recommends that the Architectural Review Board consider 
approval with two conditions: 
 

1. The applicant work with Planning to provide and appropriately locate a trash receptacle. 
2. The applicant uses the matching brick detail for the proposed area to coordinate with 

the existing brick sidewalk, subject to approval by Engineering. 
 
Mr. Gunderman stated that this application would be reviewed by the Architectural Review 
Board at their next scheduled meeting on Wednesday, April 24, 2013.  

 
Case Review 

4. 13-031ARB-MPR – BSC Sawmill Center Neighborhood District – Dublin Village 
Center – Edwards Apartment Building – Tuller Road and Village Parkway 

Steve Langworthy explained that staff members met with the applicants earlier in the week to 
review the vehicular access on the west side of the building. He said that the applicant brought 
three options for consideration, of which they wanted to ask the ART if they would agree that a 
60-foot right-of-way on the west side with parallel parking would be a viable option, in lieu of a 
65-foot right-of-way.  He said normally 65 feet would be required to provide adequate 
pedestrian and planting facilities on both sides of the street, but because the development is 
one-sided at this time, the applicant would like feedback regarding whether 60 feet would be 
adequate at this time. He said that with this option, they would eliminate the need for a Waiver 
request for block size based on the east/west dimensions of the proposed block. He noted that 
the applicant is asking for a decision prior to revisions for the Planning and Zoning Commission 
review.  
 
Barb Cox added that she was continuing to work with the applicant’s engineering team on 
stormwater calculations and management strategies. 
 
Stephen Caplinger, Creative Design + Planning, said he brought a new version of the plans with 
new renderings, stating the front shows a three-story building and the detail is more refined 
showing more brick.  He said the project description is updated with more accurate parking 
numbers including the new on-street parking. He stated that the plans are showing a 
stormwater detention basin in the open space to the west of the building that was also intended 
to serve as an amenity.  He said when they re-submit improved renderings will show the new 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 18, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 

 
60 foot street as recommended by the Administrative Review Team. 
 
Mr. Caplinger said the engineering plan included today read better with architecture and 
existing sewer lines, by pulling the building back from the sewer lines they were able to avoid 
any disruption and all other sewer lines will remain the same. 
 
Mr. Caplinger said they are actively working on elevation drawings and material boards and will 
have them available for the May 2 meeting. 
 
Ms. Ray reiterated that the ART determination and recommendation to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on this application was targeted for the May 2 ART meeting. She requested that 
the architectural elevations be labeled with percentages of each material used on each 
elevation, and noted that any use of materials such as vinyl or other materials not permitted by 
the Code would require approval of a Site Plan Waiver from the Commission.   
 
Jeff Tyler asked if vinyl was permitted in the Code.  Ms. Ray stated that the Code permitted 
“other high quality synthetic materials…with examples of successful high quality installations,” 
and the applicant would need to provide this documentation for any material other than the 
permitted primary materials such as brick, glass, or stone.   
 
Ms. Cox said they met Monday to discuss the roadway network.  She said Dublin Center Drive 
will be straightened out and there will be two new streets on each side of the proposed 
building. She noted that there will be some grading challenges on the theater site and how it 
interacts with the street intersections. She said that weekly meeting have been scheduled with 
the engineering team to talk about the roadway and work with EMH&T after the survey work is 
complete.  She didn’t know if the changes in the street layouts will cause them to lose parking. 
 
Mr. Langworthy said the deadline for the plats to go to City Council is July 1st before their 
summer hiatus. 
 
Ms. Ray said they are working on the overall schedule for the project and will circulate the 
schedule once finalized. 
 
Mr. Langworthy said he wanted to verify that the 60 foot roadway on the west side was 
appropriate with the Administrative Review Team.  [The ART members agreed.] 
 
Alan Perkins said the new layout with the 60-foot right-of way and streets with parallel parking 
were better for the Fire Department to better access the building in the event of an emergency. 
 
Mr. Caplinger said they will revise the plans accordingly and send a digital update as soon as 
possible for the team’s review. 
 
Ms. Cox confirmed with the applicant that she would work directly with Tim Volchko, EMH&T, 
on the stormwater management. 
 
John DeJarnette asked what kind of security will be provided for the court yards.  Mr. Caplinger 
said the access is limited to card holders/residents for the entrances and the parking garage. He 
said that during the day there will be an arm barrier and at night there will most likely be a 
gate. 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 18, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 
Ms. Cox pointed out that they would need to determine at some point soon the best way to 
handle addresses for the building and the residential units. She said that given the number of 
units, it would not be practical to assign each unit its own address, so they would need to 
coordinate the addresses through the Police Department.  
 
Ms. Ray asked Mr. Perkins if he had any comments relating to fire access at this time.   
 
Alan Perkins said they will need to see the construction drawings to determine the use of fire 
protection within the building zones and access zones.  He said the street widths are helpful 
and he would need to see the location of the fire hydrants and determine possible set up 
locations, but most likely the trucks will set up on the corners and the mid-points of the 
building, but with the drive aisles they will be able to get close to the building with the ladder 
truck and only needed 16 feet, but at this point there are no issues with the preliminary site 
review. 
 
Mr. Tyler said they need to talk about the interior and the use of gas piping.  Mr. Caplinger said 
they were not planning to use gas at this time. 
 
Ms. Cox asked if the water line at 8 inches along John Shields Drive will be sufficient for the Fire 
Department and possibly reducing the line size to 6 inches on the east side of the building 
would be acceptable.  Mr. Perkins said he would need to see the mechanical plans and indicate 
the hydrant locations and the water access provided inside the building. 
 
Ms. Ray said the next review meeting will be Thursday, April 25. She said she would work with 
Planning to conduct a complete review of the plans for compliance with the Code to determine 
any possible waivers or other issues requiring discussion before the determination targeted for 
May 2nd.  
 
Ms. Ray confirmed the application was received on April 11th and was posted to the website.  
There will be a General Staff meeting for this application after the ART meeting next Thursday, 
April 25, 2013. 
 
 
Administrative 
Mr. Gunderman asked Ms. Ray to provide a brief update regarding potential upcoming 
applications.  Mr. Gunderman asked if there were any changes to the April 11, 2013 meeting 
minutes [there were none].  Mr. Gunderman accepted the minutes into the record as 
presented. 
 
Mr. Gunderman confirmed there were no further items of discussion and adjourned the 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 


	Attendees
	Gary Gunderman, Planning Manager; Steve Langworthy, Director of Land Use and Long Range Planning; Rachel Ray, Planner II; Jennifer Rauch, Planner II; Alan Perkins, Fire Marshal; Jeff Tyler, Director of Building Standards; Barb Cox, Engineering Manager...

